
{00953631.DOCX / 3 } 

NOTICE OF JOINT SPECIAL MEETING OF 
NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 AND 3 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting of the Boards of Directors (the “Boards”) of the 

Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 1 (“District No. 1”), Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 2 
(“District No. 2”) and Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 3 (“District No. 3”) and collectively with 
District No. 1 and District No. 2, (the “Districts”), located in the City of Greeley, Weld County, Colorado, will be 
held on Wednesday, January 31, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. the meeting will be held virtually via Zoom.  Any member of 
the public may attend by computer or phone by accessing the Zoom details below.  At this meeting, the Boards will 
take up regular business of the Districts and any other matters as may come before the Boards. 

 
To join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device:  

Please click this URL to join;  
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/92132949088?pwd=aHo4TmFjVmFSZzhDcGh5NEQxQlA2UT09 
To join via mobile phone please dial: +1 719 359 4580  or +1 669 444 9171   

Meeting ID: 921 3294 9088 
Passcode: 934473 

 
District 1 - Board of Directors 

 
Joshua Montoya President May 2027 
Sara Freisl Vice President May 2025 
Leslie Brown Treasurer May 2025 
Angela Garcia Assistant Secretary May 2027 
Kelsey Phillips Assistant Secretary May 2025 
Alex Carlson Secretary to the Board  

 
Districts 2 Board of Directors 

 
Don Guerra Chairman/President May 2025 
Robert Eck Vice President/Secretary/Treasurer May 2027 
Leslie Brown Vice President/Assistant Secretary/Treasurer May 2025 
Marvin Davis Vice President/Assistant Secretary/Treasurer May 2027 
Kyle Moore Director   May 2025* 
Alex Carlson Secretary to the Boards   

 
District 3 Board of Directors 

 
Don Guerra Chairman/President May 2025 
Robert Eck Vice President/Secretary/Treasurer May 2027 
Leslie Brown Vice President/Assistant Secretary/Treasurer May 2025 
Marvin Davis Vice President/Assistant Secretary/Treasurer May 2027 
Vacant    May 2025* 
Alex Carlson Secretary to the Boards   

* This term will be a two-year term at the May 2025 Election 

 

THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 



{00953631.DOCX / 3 }   
   
 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Declaration of Quorum/Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest 
 

3. Discuss / Approval of Agenda 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

5. Administrative Matters 
a. Discuss and Consider Approval of Minutes from the August 2,2023 and November 29, 2023 

Special Meeting 
b. Adopt Resolution of each District to Designate Posting Locations 

 
6. Financial Matters 

a. Presentation of Aged Payables Report 
b. Discuss District No. 1 and 3 Audits 

 
7. Legal Matters 

a. Executive session under Section 24-6-402(4)(b) to confer with District Counsel to discuss: 
i. Budget Issues. 

ii. Possible Service Plan Amendment to Raise Revenues for Services and Related matters. 
iii. Contractual Obligations between Northridge Estates Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3, 

Northridge Partners, LLC, and GLH Construction, LLC, Including but not Limited to the 
Following: 

1. Construction Funding Advance and Reimbursement with Northridge Estates 
Partners, LLC, and 

2. Construction Agreement with GLH Construction, LLC and Northridge Estates 
Metropolitan District No. 1, and 

3. Operating Reimbursement Agreement with Northridge Estates Partners, LLC, and 
its Obligation to Pay District Operating Expenses. 

b. Action on Items Discussed in Executive Session 
 

8. Other Business to Come Before the Boards 
 

9. Adjournment 
 
NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 
1, 2 AND 3 
 
 
By: /s/ Alex Carlson   
District Manager 



MINUTES OF A JOINT SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-3 
HELD AUGUST 2, 2023 

 

A joint special meeting of the Boards of Directors (the “Boards”) of the Northridge Estates 
Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3 (the “District”) was held on Wednesday, August 2, 2023, at 5:00 
p.m. held exclusively by means of Zoom webinar. The meeting was open to the public.  
 

ATTENDANCE  District 1 -Directors in Attendance: 
Donald Guerra 
Angela Garcia 
Leslie Brown 
Joshua Montoya 
 
Districts 2 and 3 – Directors in Attendance: 
Donald Guerra 
Robert Eck 
Leslie Brown 
Marvin Davis 
 
Directors Absent: 
None 
 
Also in Attendance: 
Alex Carlson, Andrea Weaver, and Kacee Sanders - Centennial 
Consulting Group, LLC 
David Greher, Cockrel Ella Glesne Greher & Ruhland, P.C.  
12 - Members of the community 
 

  Call to Order:  Mr. Carlson called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 
 
Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest:  The Boards discussed the 
requirements pursuant to the Colorado Revised Statutes to disclose any 
potential conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty to the 
Boards of Directors and to the Secretary of State. Mr. Carlson noted that 
a quorum was present in District Nos. 1, 2, and 3 and requested members 
of the Boards to disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to 
any matters scheduled for discussion at this meeting and incorporated for 
the record those applicable disclosures made by the Board members prior 
to this meeting in accordance with the statute. District Counsel noted that 
all Directors’ Disclosure Statements had been filed by the statutory 
deadline. 
 

 



Approval of Agenda: Following review, Director Guerra moved to 
approve the agenda as presented. Director Brown seconded, and the 
motion unanimously carried.  
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS  
 
 
 
 
 

 Minutes: The Boards considered approval of the minutes from the June 
30, 2023 Special Meeting. Director Guerra moved to approve the minutes. 
Director Brown seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried. 
 
Consider Appointments to fill Board Vacancies: Director Guerra resigned 
from District No. 1. Director Montoya moved to appoint Kelsey Phillips 
and Sara Freisl to fill District No. 1 Board vacancies. Director Brown 
moved to appoint Kelsey Phillps and Sara Freisl subject to verifying 
qualifications. Director Montoya seconded, and the motion was 
unanimously carried. 
 
Election of Officers: Director Montoya moved to elect officers for District 
No. 1 as follows: Kelsey Phillps as Assistant Secretary, Sara Friesl as Vice 
President, Joshua Montoya as President, and Leslie Brown as Treasurer. 
Director Brown seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried.  
 
Ratify November 3, 2022 Minutes:  Director Montoya moved to ratify the 
November 3, 2022 Special Meeting minutes. Director Brown seconded, 
and the motion was unanimously carried. 
 

FINANCIAL 
MATTERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEGAL MATTERS 
 

 Unaudited Financial Statements: Ms. Weaver presented the Unaudited 
Financial Statements for the period ending June 30, 2023. Director Brown 
moved to approve the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period 
ending June 30, 2023. Director Guerra seconded, and the motion was 
unanimously carried. 
 
Ratification of Claims:   Ms. Weaver presented the claims for the period 
of May 31, 2023 through June 30, 2023. Director Brown moved to ratify 
the claims for the period ending June 30, 2023. Director Eck seconded, 
and the motion was unanimously carried. 
 
Revocable License Agreement for Landscape Maintenance Services: 
Following review, Director Guerra moved to approve the Revocable 
License Agreement for Landscape Maintenance Services with Brightview 
Landscape Services. Director Eck seconded, and the motion was 
unanimously carried.  

 
DISTRICT 
MATTERS 
 

  
Consider Approval of Proposed Changes to District Rules and 
Regulations: 
The Boards discussed. No action was taken.  
 
 



 

Appoint Volunteers to Architectural Control Committee (ACC): 
Director Montoya moved to appoint Joshua Montoya, Sara Friesl, Tiffany 
Stout, and Curtis McKay to the Architectural Control Committee. 
Director Brown seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried.  
 
Consider Approval of Social Media Draft Policy: 
The Boards discussed. The item was tabled for a future meeting.   
 
Discuss Regular Meeting Schedule: 
The Boards discussed. The item was tabled for a future meeting. 
 
Discuss Pet Waste Stations: 
The Boards discussed. The item was tabled for a future meeting. 
 
Discuss Communications in the Neighborhood: 
Director Montoya presented. No action was taken. 
 

PUBLIC 
COMMENTS 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 None.  
 
 
None. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  Director Brown moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 PM. Director 
Montoya seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried.  
 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
By    
        Secretary for the Meeting 

 



MINUTES OF A JOINT SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-3 
HELD NOVEMBER 29, 2023 

 

A joint special meeting of the Boards of Directors (the “Boards”) of the Northridge Estates 
Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3 (the “District”) was held on Wednesday, November 29, 2023, at 
5:00 p.m. held exclusively by means of Zoom webinar. The meeting was open to the public.  
 

ATTENDANCE  District 1 -Directors in Attendance: 
Sara Freisl 
Angela Garcia 
Leslie Brown 
Kelsey Phillips 
Joshua Montoya 
 
Districts 2 and 3 – Directors in Attendance: 
Donald Guerra 
Robert Eck 
Leslie Brown 
Marvin Davis 
 
Directors Absent: 
None 
 
Also in Attendance: 
Alex Carlson, Dave Dressler, and Molly Mild - Centennial Consulting 
Group, LLC 
David Greher, Cockrel Ella Glesne Greher & Ruhland, P.C.  
5 - Members of the community 
 

  Call to Order:  Mr. Carlson called the meeting to order. 
 
Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest:  The Boards discussed the 
requirements pursuant to the Colorado Revised Statutes to disclose any 
potential conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty to the 
Boards of Directors and to the Secretary of State. Mr. Carlson noted that 
a quorum was present in District Nos. 1, 2, and 3 and requested members 
of the Boards to disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to 
any matters scheduled for discussion at this meeting and incorporated for 
the record those applicable disclosures made by the Board members prior 
to this meeting in accordance with the statute. District Counsel noted that 
all Directors’ Disclosure Statements had been filed by the statutory 
deadline. 
 

 



Approval of Agenda: Following review, Director Phillips moved to add 
item 6f. “Consider appointment to fill Board vacancy”, item 7d. “Discuss 
Architectural Review Fees”, and item 7e. “Discuss the addition of Speed 
Bumps within the community” to the agenda. Director Freisl seconded, 
and upon vote the motion was unanimously carried. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS  
 
 
 

 Minutes: The Boards considered approval of the minutes from the August 
2, 2023 Special Meeting. Director Eck moved to table the minutes for the 
next meeting. Director Guerra seconded, and the motion was unanimously 
carried. 

FINANCIAL 
MATTERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Unaudited Financial Statements: Mr. Dressler presented the Unaudited 
Financial Statements for the period ending August 31, 2023. Director 
Guerra moved to approve the Unaudited Financial Statements for the 
period ending August 31, 2023. Director Brown seconded, and the motion 
was unanimously carried. 
 
Ratification of Claims: Mr. Dressler presented the claims for the period 
of July 31, 2023 through August 31, 2023. Director Guerra moved to 
ratify the claims for the period ending August 31, 2023. Director Brown 
seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried. 
 
Ratification of 2022 Audits (Districts 1 & 3): Following review and 
discussion, Director Brown moved to ratify the 2022 Audits for Districts 
Nos. 1 and 3. Director Phillips seconded, and the motion was unanimously 
carried. 
 
Ratification of 2022 Audit Exemption (District 2): Following review and 
discussion, Director Brown moved to ratify the 2022 Audits for District 
No. 2. Director Phillips seconded, and the motion was unanimously 
carried. 
 
Discuss 2023 Audit Requirements: Following discussion, Director Guerra 
made a motion for Director Brown to sign the audit engagement 
agreements, not to exceed $16,000. Director Brown seconded, and the 
motion was unanimously carried. 
 
Public Hearing on 2023 Budget Amendments and Consider Adoption of 
Resolution Amending 2022 Budgets (Districts 1 & 2): Director Guerra 
opened the public hearing. Hearing no comments Director Guerra closed 
the public hearing. Following review, Director Freisl moved to approve 
the Amended 2022 Budget for District No. 1. Director Brown seconded, 
and the motion was unanimously carried. Director Brown moved to 
approve the Amended 2022 Budget for District No. 2. Director Guerra 
seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEGAL MATTERS 
 

Public Hearing on 2024 Budget and Consider Adoption of Resolution 
Adopting 2024 Budgets: Director Guerra opened the public hearing. 
Hearing no comments Director Guerra closed the public hearing. 
Following review, Director Brown moved to approve the 2024 Budget for 
District No. 1. Director Freisl seconded, and the motion was unanimously 
carried. Director Guerra moved to approve the 2024 Budget for District 
No. 2. Director Brown seconded, and the motion was unanimously 
carried. Director Guerra moved to approve the 2024 Budget for District 
No. 3. Director Eck seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried. 
 
Resolutions Designating Posting Location: Following discussion, 
Director Eck moved to adopt the Resolutions Designating Posting 
Location for District Nos. 1-3. Director Guerra seconded, and the motion 
unanimously carried. 
 
Resolution to Establish an Operations Fee: Following review and 
discussion, Director Freisl moved to approve the Resolution to Establish 
an Operations Fee of $480 per year, billed monthly, subject to City 
Approval. Director Phillps seconded, and the motion was unanimously 
carried.  
 
2024 Engagement of Centennial Consulting Group as District Accountant 
and Manager: Following review and discussion, Director Freisl moved to 
approve Centennial Consulting Group as Accountant and Manager for the 
Districts. Director Brown seconded, and the motion was unanimously 
carried.  
 
Adoption of Resolutions Exercising Option Not to Provide Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance Coverage for Board Members for Policy Year 
2024: Following review, Director Guerra moved to approve the 
Resolutions Exercising Option Not to Provide Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance Coverage for Board Members for Policy Year 2024. Director 
Brown seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried.  
 
Ratify 2022 Annual Report and Authorize Filing of 2023 Annual Report: 
Following review, Director Guerra moved to ratify the 2022 Annual 
Report and authorize filing the 2023 Annual Report. Director Brown 
seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried.  
 
Consider Appointment of Resident Board: Following discussion, Director 
Guerra nominated Kyle Moore to the vacancy on the District No. 2 Board 
subject to confirmation of Mr. Moore’s qualifications. Director Eck 
seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried. 

 
DISTRICT 
MATTERS 

  
Ratification of Snow Removal Agreement with Brightview Landscape 
Services (District 3): Following discussion, Director Freisl moved to 



 

 ratify the Snow Removal Agreement with Brightview Landscape Services 
for District No. 3. Director Phillps seconded, and the motion was 
unanimously carried.  
 
Discuss Approval of Landscape Maintenance Agreement with Brightview 
Landscape Services (District 3): Following discussion, Director Freisl 
moved to approve the Landscape Maintenance Agreement with 
Brightview Landscape Services for District No. 3. Director Phillps 
seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried.  
 
Discuss Regular Meeting Schedule: The Boards discussed. Meetings will 
be scheduled quarterly. 
 
Architectural Review Fees: Following discussion, Director Freisl moved 
to approve the reduction of Architectural Review Fees to $10. Director 
Phillps seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Discussion of Speed Bumps: The Boards discussed. 
 

PUBLIC 
COMMENTS 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 None.  
 
 
None. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  Director Phillps moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 PM. Director Freisl 
seconded, and the motion was unanimously carried.  
 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
By    
        Secretary for the Meeting 

 



{00953727.DOCX /  }   
 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING LOCATION TO POST NOTICE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to §§24-6-402(2)(c) and 32-1-903(2), C.R.S., notice and, 
where possible, the agenda of the Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 1 (the 
“District”) Board of Directors (the “Board”) meetings at which the adoption of any formal 
action is to occur or at which a majority or quorum of the body is in attendance, or is 
expected to be in attendance, shall be posted within the boundaries of the District at least 
24 hours prior to each meeting at a location designated at the first regular meeting of each 
year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 1 as follows: 

Notices of meetings (regular, special and work/study session) of the Board 
required pursuant to §24-6-401, et seq., C.R.S., shall be posted at least 24 hours prior to 
each meeting at: www.ccgcolorado.com/northridge  

In the event of an exigent or emergency circumstance such as a power outage or 
an interruption in internet service, the District will post notice of public meetings at least 
24 hours prior to a meeting at the following physical location within the District at the 
approximate geographical location:  

40°26'13.9"N 104°47'01.8"W 

 

ADOPTED this 31st day of January, 2024. 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

By  
 President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Secretary 
 



{00953728.DOCX /  }   
 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING LOCATION TO POST NOTICE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to §§24-6-402(2)(c) and 32-1-903(2), C.R.S., notice and, 
where possible, the agenda of the Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 2 (the 
“District”) Board of Directors (the “Board”) meetings at which the adoption of any formal 
action is to occur or at which a majority or quorum of the body is in attendance, or is 
expected to be in attendance, shall be posted within the boundaries of the District at least 
24 hours prior to each meeting at a location designated at the first regular meeting of each 
year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 2 as follows: 

Notices of meetings (regular, special and work/study session) of the Board 
required pursuant to §24-6-401, et seq., C.R.S., shall be posted at least 24 hours prior to 
each meeting at: www.ccgcolorado.com/northridge  

In the event of an exigent or emergency circumstance such as a power outage or 
an interruption in internet service, the District will post notice of public meetings at least 
24 hours prior to a meeting at the following physical location within the District at the 
approximate geographical location:  

40°26'13.9"N 104°47'01.8"W 

 

ADOPTED this 31st day of January, 2024. 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

By  
 President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Secretary 
 



{00953729.DOCX /  }   
 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING LOCATION TO POST NOTICE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to §§24-6-402(2)(c) and 32-1-903(2), C.R.S., notice and, 
where possible, the agenda of the Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 3 (the 
“District”) Board of Directors (the “Board”) meetings at which the adoption of any formal 
action is to occur or at which a majority or quorum of the body is in attendance, or is 
expected to be in attendance, shall be posted within the boundaries of the District at least 
24 hours prior to each meeting at a location designated at the first regular meeting of each 
year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 3 as follows: 

Notices of meetings (regular, special and work/study session) of the Board 
required pursuant to §24-6-401, et seq., C.R.S., shall be posted at least 24 hours prior to 
each meeting at: www.ccgcolorado.com/northridge  

In the event of an exigent or emergency circumstance such as a power outage or 
an interruption in internet service, the District will post notice of public meetings at least 
24 hours prior to a meeting at the following physical location within the District at the 
approximate geographical location:  

40°26'13.9"N 104°47'01.8"W 

 

ADOPTED this 31st day of January, 2024. 

NORTHRIDGE ESTATES 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 
 

By  
 President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Secretary 
 



Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 3
AP Aging for Ending Date: 1/16/2024

Provider  Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Total

BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC. Acct # 16697957  Inv # 8548694  on 
11/1/2023 -  - Sprinkler Repair 0.00 0.00 8,649.14 0.00 8,649.14

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 10496  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,042.52 3,042.52

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 10653  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,001.06 3,001.06

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 10872  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,005.56 3,005.56

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 11068  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,020.46 3,020.46

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 11280  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,043.48 3,043.48

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 11484  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,103.46 3,103.46

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 11673  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,041.86 3,041.86

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 11859  on 9/1/2023 -  - Management 
& Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,060.36 3,060.36

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 11935  on 9/19/2023 -  - Design 
Review Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 12043  on 10/1/2023 -  - 
Management & Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 12221  on 11/1/2023 -  - Audit/Tax 
Prep 0.00 0.00 3,636.12 0.00 3,636.12

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # FC 88  on 11/1/2023 -  - 
Management & Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 868.60 0.00 868.60

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 12407  on 12/1/2023 -  - 
Management & Accounting Services 0.00 3,004.60 0.00 0.00 3,004.60

CENTENNIAL CONSULTING GROUP Inv # 12478  on 12/1/2023 -  - Design 
Review Fees 0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00

COCKREL ELA GLESNE GREHER & RUHLAND. P.C Acct # 8073.001  Inv # 
8073.001 - August 2023  on 9/1/2023 -  - Legal 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,685.00 3,685.00

COCKREL ELA GLESNE GREHER & RUHLAND. P.C Acct # 8073.001  Inv # 
September 2023 - 8073.001  on 9/30/2023 -  - Legal 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,755.50 3,755.50

COCKREL ELA GLESNE GREHER & RUHLAND. P.C Acct # 8073.001  Inv # 
October 2023 - 8073.001  on 11/1/2023 -  - Legal 0.00 0.00 2,689.00 0.00 2,689.00

COCKREL ELA GLESNE GREHER & RUHLAND. P.C Acct # 8073.001  Inv # 
November 2023 - 8073.001  on 12/1/2023 -  - Legal 0.00 6,286.50 0.00 0.00 6,286.50

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS PROPERTY AND LIABILITY POOL C/O MCGRIFF 
SEIBELS & WILLIAMS, INC. Acct # 24PL-61746-1521  Inv # 61746 #1  on 
9/5/2023 -  - Prepaid Insurance

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,076.00 2,076.00

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS PROPERTY AND LIABILITY POOL C/O MCGRIFF 
SEIBELS & WILLIAMS, INC. Acct # 24PL-61747-1680  Inv # 61747 #2  on 
12/1/2023 -  - Prepaid Insurance

0.00 2,076.00 0.00 0.00 2,076.00

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS PROPERTY AND LIABILITY POOL C/O MCGRIFF 
SEIBELS & WILLIAMS, INC. Acct # 24PL-61748-1738  Inv # 61748 #3  on 
12/1/2023 -  - Prepaid Insurance

0.00 2,076.00 0.00 0.00 2,076.00

FISCAL FOCUS PARTNERS, LLC Inv # 23094  on 9/21/2023 -  - Audit/Tax Prep 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00

FISCAL FOCUS PARTNERS, LLC Inv # 23095  on 9/21/2023 -  - Audit/Tax Prep 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00

Report generated on 1/16/2024 1:38 PM - V3.1 Page 1



Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 3
AP Aging for Ending Date: 1/16/2024

Provider  Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Total

NATURESCAPE INC. (DBA: ALPINE GARDENS) Inv # 23480  on 9/1/2023 -  - 
Landscape Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,333.99 7,333.99

NATURESCAPE INC. (DBA: ALPINE GARDENS) Inv # 23653  on 9/1/2023 -  - 
Landscape Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,333.99 7,333.99

NATURESCAPE INC. (DBA: ALPINE GARDENS) Inv # 23805  on 9/1/2023 -  - 
Landscape Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,333.99 7,333.99

PRAIRIE MOUNTAIN MEDIA Inv # 368534  on 12/1/2023 -  - Publication & 
Recording 0.00 27.28 0.00 0.00 27.28

THE VERNS, INC (DBA: T. CHARLES WILSON INSURANCE SERVICE) Inv # 12833  
on 11/1/2023 -  - Insurance 0.00 0.00 595.00 0.00 595.00

THE VERNS, INC (DBA: T. CHARLES WILSON INSURANCE SERVICE) Inv # 12834  
on 11/1/2023 -  - Insurance 0.00 0.00 595.00 0.00 595.00

THE VERNS, INC (DBA: T. CHARLES WILSON INSURANCE SERVICE) Inv # 12835  
on 11/1/2023 -  - Insurance 0.00 0.00 595.00 0.00 595.00

Total 0.00 13,520.38 17,627.86 74,587.23 105,735.47

Report generated on 1/16/2024 1:38 PM - V3.1 Page 2



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 

 

CONSTRUCTION FUNDING ADVANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT 

 

 

This CONSTRUCTION FUNDING ADVANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 30th day of July, 

2020, by and between NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

NO. 1, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 

(the “District”), and NORTHRIDGE ESTATES PARTNERS, LLC, a Colorado 

limited liability company, and its affiliates, successors or assigns (the “Developer”).  The 

District and the Developer are referred to herein as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is duly and validly organized as a quasi-municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado in accordance with the 

provisions of Article 1, Title 32, Colorado Revised Statutes (the “Special District Act”), 

with the power to provide certain public infrastructure improvements and services needed 

for a development project known as “Northridge Estates” (the “Project”), all in 

accordance with the Consolidated Service Plan (the “Service Plan”) for the Northridge 

Estates Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3 (collectively, “the Districts”); and 

WHEREAS, the Project includes public infrastructure to be the responsibility of 

the District (the “Public Infrastructure”) and private infrastructure to be the 

responsibility of the Developer (the “Private Infrastructure”), both of which benefit and 

are necessary for completion of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to undertake construction of Public Infrastructure 

and Private Infrastructure for the benefit of the Project in accordance with the Plans and 

Specifications (as defined below) and in accordance with this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the District has conducted a public bid for the construction of the 

Project for the Northridge Estates Subdivision Phase 1, 2, & 3 pursuant to the provision 

of the Special District Act, and on July 30, 2020, the Board of Directors of the District 

determined to award a construction contract (the “Construction Contract”) to the 

apparent lowest responsive and responsible bidder, GLH Construction, LLC, a Colorado 

limited liability company (the “Contractor”), in the amount of $3,940,437.39, subject to 

modification by approved Change Order as set forth in Section 1 below (the “Contract 

Amount”); and 

WHEREAS, the District does not presently have financial resources to provide 

funding for payment of the Contract Amount in order to enable construction of Project or 

the Public Infrastructure to proceed in a timely manner; and  



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 2 

WHEREAS, the District and the Developer desire to enter into this Agreement for 

the purpose of consolidating all understandings and commitments between such Parties 

relating to the Developer’s obligation to fund the Contract Amount and the District’s 

commitment to reimburse that portion of the Contract Amount associated with Public 

Infrastructure; and  

WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to advance funds (each an “Advance”) to 

the District in the amount of the Contract Amount on the condition that the District 

agrees to repay such portion of the Advances associated with Public Improvement under 

the terms of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District has determined that the best 

interests of the District and its property owners and residents will be served by entering 

into this Agreement for the funding of the Contract Amount by the Developer; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors has authorized its officers to execute 

this Agreement and to take all other actions necessary and desirable to effectuate the 

purposes of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants 

herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the District and the Developer agree as 

follows: 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

1. Advance Amount and Term.  The Developer shall Advance funds to the 

District, not to exceed the Contract Amount, according to the procedures set forth in 

Section 3.  The Parties agree that the proportional amount of the Contract Amount 

associated with Public Infrastructure and Private Infrastructure is as set forth in Exhibit 

A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  In the event a change order 

is determined necessary by the District and approved in writing by the Developer, which 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld (a “Change Order”), the Contract Amount 

may be increased or decreased, as applicable, in the amount of the Change Order by 

execution of a Change Order in accordance with the Construction Contract and shall 

become part of the Contract Amount.  Any Change Order shall clearly state whether the 

change is associated with Public Infrastructure or Private Infrastructure.  Each Advance 

shall be provided to the District to allow the District to make its payment obligations 

under the Construction Contract, and shall be available to the District through December 

31, 2021 (the “Advance Obligation Termination Date”).  

2. Use of Funds.  The District agrees that it shall apply all Advances received 

from the Developer under this Agreement solely to the payment of the Contract Amount 

pursuant to the Construction Contract.  The Developer, shall be entitled to a monthly 



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 3 

accounting of the expenditures made by the District and otherwise may request specific 

information concerning such expenditures at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice 

to the District and the District shall promptly provide such requested information. 

3. Manner for Requesting Funding.   

(a) Monthly Advance Request.  On or before the 20th day of each 

month, the District shall deliver to the Developer a request for an Advance in the 

form of the “Funding Request” attached hereto as Exhibit B, which shall be 

properly completed and approved by the District.  The amount of the Advance in 

the Funding Request shall be based on pay applications received for payment 

under the Construction Contract (the “Pay Applications”). 

(b) Documents Required.  Each Funding Request shall be accompanied 

by: 

(i) Pay Applications for which funding is being sought which 

shall include a sworn statement from the Contractor setting forth in detail 

the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all subcontractors with 

whom it has contracted, type of labor and materials to be furnished, 

amounts of the sub-contracts (including extras and credits), amounts 

previously paid to date, amounts of current request, accumulative retainage 

to date, and balances due; 

(ii) Lien waivers (consisting of at least final waivers of lien or 

waivers of lien to date, as appropriate), dated as of the date of the 

Contractor’s Sworn Statement;  

(iii) Engineer’s recommendation for payment; and 

(iv) Such other instruments, documents and information as may 

be reasonably agreed upon by the Parties or as may be reasonably required 

by the Escrow Agent. 

(c) Final Disbursement.  The Developer shall advance to the District the 

final disbursement of the Contract Amount when the following conditions have 

been complied with, provided that all other conditions in this Agreement for 

disbursements have been complied with: 

(i) Construction has been fully completed and equipped in 

substantial accordance with the those certain plans and specifications 

known as (A) Northridge Estates Subdivision Construction Documents, 

dated May 19, 2017, (B) Landscape Architectural Plans for Northridge 

Estates 1st Replat, dated May 19, 2017, and (C) all other plans, 

specifications, tests and reports incorporated into Section 3(c)(i)(A) and 



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 4 

Section 3(c)(i)(B) (collectively, the “Plans and Specifications”), free and 

clear of mechanics’ liens and security interests; and 

(ii) The District shall have furnished to the Developer copies of 

all final sworn statements and waivers of lien and sworn statements from 

contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers; and 

(iii) The District shall have complied with any applicable statutory 

requirements related to the distribution of final payments for construction 

contracts, including but not limited to the publication of a Notice of Final 

Payment.   

(d) District Representations.  The submittal by the District of a Funding 

Request shall be deemed to include the following representations and warranties 

by the District: 

(i) That all outstanding claims for labor, services and materials 

have been paid or will be paid from the proceeds of each Funding Request 

and the District has received lien waivers (which may be conditioned upon 

receipt of payment) for all work performed through the last day of the 

calendar month immediately preceding the Funding Request;  

(ii) That there are no liens outstanding on the Project; 

(iii) That all construction up to the date of the Funding Request 

has been done in compliance with the Construction Contract;  

(iv) That all funds disbursed by the Developer have been applied 

as required by this Agreement;  

(v) That the District is in compliance with all of its obligations 

under this Agreement; and 

(vi) The required testing and inspections by qualified third party 

testing companies have been completed and no deficiencies have been 

noted. 

(e) Construction Progress Report.  With each Funding Request, and 

upon the request of the Developer, the District shall provide to the Developer a 

construction progress report concerning the progress made toward construction 

and completion of the Project.  If requested, each such report shall include an 

accounting of Advances made by Developer to the District in the prior month 

pursuant to Section 2. 



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 5 

(f) Retainage.  No individual Funding Request shall exceed the portion 

thereof which the District is then obligated to disburse to the Contractor.  Any 

“retainage” to which the Contractor is entitled shall be funded by the Developer 

under a separate Funding Request such that payment of retainage to the Contract 

Amount can be made in accordance with the Construction Contract.  

(g) Record Keeping.  The District shall keep a record of Advances made 

hereunder, and shall cause expenditures of such Advances to be accounted for as 

part of its monthly financial reporting, including accounting for that portion of any 

Advances made for Public Infrastructure and for Private Infrastructure.  The 

District shall provide such records to the Developer upon the Developer’s 

reasonable request. 

(h) Funding of Advances.  Within ten business days of receipt by the 

Developer of a properly completed Funding Request signed by an officer of the 

District, the Developer shall Advance the amount requested in immediately 

available funds by wire transfer to the District.   

4. Obligations Irrevocable. 

(a) The obligations created by this Agreement are absolute, irrevocable, 

unconditional, and are not subject to setoff or counterclaim. 

(b) So long as a Funding Request conforms to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement, the Developer shall not intentionally take any action which 

would adversely delay or impair the District’s ability to receive the funds 

contemplated herein with sufficient time to properly pay approved Pay 

Applications. 

5. Terms of Repayment; Source of Revenues.  Any Advances for Public 

Infrastructure, as described in Exhibit A and any properly approved Change Order, made 

by Developer hereunder shall repaid by the District to the Developer in accordance with 

the terms hereof, including Section 12. 

(a) If and to the extent that the District (i) receives bond proceeds for the 

acquisition or completion of the Public Infrastructure or (ii) has other legally 

available revenue which is not otherwise appropriated, obligated, pledged or 

reserved for any current or future purpose in any fiscal year, the District will, from 

such available sources, reimburse the Developer or its assignee for all Advances 

for Public Infrastructure and other amounts actually advanced hereunder, together 

with simple interest thereon at a fixed rate of 8.5% per annum (cumulatively, the 

“Capital Repayment Amount”) commencing as of the date of each Advance. 



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 6 

(b) The District will undertake commercially reasonable efforts to issue 

tax-exempt or taxable bonds or notes and to generate sufficient revenue to repay to 

the Developer or its assignee all of the Capital Repayment Amount, subject to all 

conditions and limitations set forth herein and other applicable law.  If requested, 

the District will also take all commercially reasonable action to recognize that 

interest paid to the Developer or its assignee on the Capital Repayment Amount 

will, to the extent possible under federal tax regulations, be treated as exempt from 

federal income taxation.  Any Board decision to appropriate the Capital 

Repayment Amount, however, shall be purely discretionary and non-obligatory. 

(c) All of the Capital Repayment Amount and any other obligation 

hereunder shall be (i) subject to any and all limitations on the amount of financial 

obligations which the District may incur pursuant to the Service Plan, any ballot 

questions or any bond indenture or bond resolution and (ii) non-transferable or 

assignable, except to a person or entity (or its lender) which the District reasonably 

believes is engaged, either alone or with others, in the business of developing or 

improving property in the District for use, sale, lease or transfer to others. 

6. Termination. 

(a) The Developer’s obligations to Advance funds to the District in 

accordance with this Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of the Advance 

Obligation Termination Date or final payment to the Contractor pursuant to the 

terms of the Construction Contract. 

(b) The District’s obligations to repay the Developer shall be governed 

by the terms of this Agreement, including Section 12, and shall terminate 40 years 

from the date hereof.  Any portion of the Capital Repayment Amount not paid 40 

years after the date hereof shall be deemed discharged, paid and canceled. 

7. Time Is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence hereof; provided, however, 

that if the last day permitted or otherwise determined for the performance of any required 

act under this Agreement falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, the time for 

performance shall be extended to the next succeeding business day, unless otherwise 

expressly stated. 

8. Notices and Place for Payments.  All notices, demands and communications 

(collectively, “Notices”) under this Agreement shall be delivered or sent by: (a) first 

class, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (b) nationally 

recognized overnight carrier, addressed to the address of the intended recipient set forth 

below or such other address as either party may designate by notice pursuant to this 

Paragraph, or (c) sent by PDF or email.  Notices shall be deemed given either one 

business day after delivery to the overnight carrier, three days after being mailed as 

provided in clause (a) above, or upon confirmed delivery as provided in clause (c) above. 



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 7 

Notices sent pursuant to clause (a) or clause (b) as set forth above shall provide a 

conforming copy concurrently delivered via by email. 

If to the District: Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 1 

C/O COLLINS COCKREL & COLE, P.C. 

Attention: David A. Greher 

390 Union Blvd., Suite 400 

Denver, Colorado  80228 

(303) 218-7201 (phone) 

dgreher@cccfirm.com 

 

If to the Developer: Northridge Estates Partners, LLC 

Attention:  Lee Lowrey 

4040 MacArthur Blvd., Ste. 250 

Newport Beach, CA  92660 

(949) 466-3361 (phone) 

lmlowrey@arborcapitalpartners.com 

 

9. Amendments.  This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a 

writing executed by both the District and the Developer. 

10. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the 

validity of any remaining portion of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and 

effect.  In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall 

automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms to such 

illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is 

legal, valid and enforceable. 

11. Applicable Laws.  This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising out 

of or relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law 

of the State of Colorado, without regard to conflict of law principles that would result in the 

application of any law other than the law of the State of Colorado.  Venue for all actions 

arising from this Agreement shall be in the District Court in and for Weld County, 

Colorado. 

12. Agreement Not an Indebtedness or Multiple Fiscal Year Financial Obligation.  

The District’s payment obligations under this Agreement shall be subject to annual 

appropriation by the Board of Directors of the District in its sole discretion.  The terms and 

conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a multiple-fiscal year direct or 

indirect district debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of Article X, 

Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution. 



{00768676.DOCX / 6 } 8 

13. Governmental Immunity.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of 

the rights and privileges of the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity 

Act. 

14. Supplemental Public Securities Act.  The District hereby elects to apply all of 

the provisions of the Supplemental Public Securities Act, found at Title 11, Article 57, Part 

2, C.R.S., to this Agreement other than Section 11-57-211, C.R.S.  This recital shall be 

conclusive evidence of the validity and the regularity of the District’s execution of this 

Agreement after its delivery for value. 

15. Assignment.  The covenants set forth in this Agreement may not be 

assigned by the District or the Developer without the prior written consent of the other 

Party. 

16. Authority.  By execution hereof, the District and the Developer represent 

and warrant that their respective representatives signing hereunder have full power and 

authority to execute this Agreement and to bind the respective party to the terms hereof. 

17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes and represents the entire, 

integrated agreement between the District and the Developer with respect to the matters set 

forth herein and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations, 

agreements or arrangements of any kind with respect to those matters, whether written or 

oral.  This Agreement shall become effective upon the date of full execution hereof.   

18. Negotiated Provisions.  This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly 

against one party than against another merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been 

prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each party has 

contributed substantially and materially to the preparation of this Agreement. 

19. Counterpart Execution.  This Agreement may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 

constitute one and the same instrument.  Executed copies hereof may be delivered by 

email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon 

the signatories hereto. 

 

 

 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

  





















{00872401.DOCX / 2 }

SECOND AMENDMENT TO
CONSTRUCTION FUNDING ADVANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT

This SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSTRUCTION FUNDING 
ADVANCE AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Second Amendment”) 
is made and entered into as of the 18th day of January, 2022, by and between 
NORTHRIDGE ESTATES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and 
NORTHRIDGE ESTATES PARTNERS, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, 
and its affiliates, successors or assigns (the “Developer”).  The District and the 
Developer are referred to herein as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is duly and validly organized as a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 1, Title 32, Colorado Revised Statutes (the “Special District Act”), 
with the power to provide certain public infrastructure improvements and services needed 
for a development project known as “Northridge Estates” (the “Project”), all in 
accordance with the Consolidated Service Plan (the “Service Plan”) for the Northridge 
Estates Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3 (collectively, “the Districts”); and

WHEREAS, the Project includes public infrastructure to be the responsibility of 
the District (the “Public Infrastructure”) and private infrastructure to be the 
responsibility of the Developer (the “Private Infrastructure”), both of which benefit and 
are necessary for completion of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have previously executed the Construction Funding 
Advance and Reimbursement Agreement (the “Original Agreement”) dated as of 
July 30, 2020 and the First Amendment to Construction Funding Advance and 
Reimbursement Agreement (the “First Amendment”) dated as of February 8, 2021, both 
to undertake construction of Public Infrastructure and Private Infrastructure for the 
benefit of the Project in accordance with the Plans and Specifications; and

WHEREAS, the District has conducted a public bid for the construction of the 
Project for the Northridge Estates Subdivision Phase 1, 2, & 3 pursuant to the provision 
of the Special District Act, and the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) 
awarded to the apparent lowest, responsive and responsible bidder, GLH Construction, 
LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (the “Contractor”), construction contracts for 
various phases of the Project as follows: (a) for all of phase 1 work a Contract dated 
August 5, 2020, with a contract price of $3,957,802.01 (the “Phase 1 Construction 
Contract”); and (b) for all of phase 2 work and a portion of phase 3 work a Contract 





































































































































































15th day of March, 2021









3/15/21





President





President

March 15, 2021

15th          March















































15th
March







November 4, 2021











President - Northridge Metro DistrictN/A





President - Northridge Metro District

4th November









































{00771724.DOCX / 3 } 

OPERATING REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Operating Reimbursement Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of 

July 30, 2020 by and between Northridge Estates Metropolitan District No. 1, a quasi-

municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (hereinafter 

referred to as the “District”), and Northridge Estates Partners, LLC, a Colorado limited 

liability company (hereinafter referred to as the “Developer” and together with the 

District, the “Parties,” and each a “Party”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was organized under Article 1, Title 32, C.R.S., to 

acquire, construct, install and maintain public infrastructure, in accordance with its 

Service Plan approved by the City of Greeley; and 

WHEREAS, at present the District does not have sufficient funds available to pay 

operating, maintenance, and administrative expenses; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer, in its sole discretion, may advance funds as requested 

from time to time by the District to pay such expenses with the expectation of eventually 

being reimbursed by the District pursuant to this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

contained herein and other good and sufficient consideration, the Parties agree to the 

terms discussed hereinafter. 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

1. Operating Advances. 

(a) Within one week after the date of this Agreement, the Developer 

shall Advance an amount of $25,000 to the District to pay the District’s initial operating 

costs and, when such $25,000 is depleted, the Developer, in its sole and absolute 

discretion, may advance funds (collectively, the “Operating Advances”) as requested 

from time to time by the District to pay any future operating, maintenance, and/or 

administrative expenses in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

(b) If the District determines that there will be insufficient funds 

available to pay the District’s anticipated operating, maintenance, and/or administrative 

expenses for the next fiscal year, the District shall calculate the anticipated amount of 

such funding shortfall (the “Operating Funding Shortfall”), which shall be classified by 

nature of use. 

(c) The District shall submit written requests on a quarterly basis to the 

Developer to deposit with the District’s bank the amount of the Operating Funding 

Shortfall anticipated to be needed for the next fiscal quarter.  The Developer, after 



{00771724.DOCX / 3 } 

2 

reasonable verification of such Operating Funding Shortfall, may, in its sole and absolute 

discretion, make an Operating Advance and fund the Operating Funding Shortfall for the 

next fiscal quarter after such request from the District.  To the extent any Operating 

Advance is not spent by the District in the fiscal quarter for which it was requested, the 

unspent amount of the Operating Advance shall be applied to reduce any Operating 

Funding Shortfall anticipated for the subsequent fiscal quarter. 

(d) Within 45 days after the end of each fiscal year during the term of 

this Agreement, the District shall complete an accounting of any funds advanced pursuant 

to this Agreement, which shall be classified by nature of use.  In the event that the funds 

advanced hereunder exceed the actual costs and expenses incurred by the District for 

operation, maintenance, and/or administration, the District shall refund such excess 

amounts to the Developer within 30 days of such accounting and a written request from 

the Developer. 

2. Reimbursement. 

(a) If and to the extent the District has legally available revenue which 

is not otherwise appropriated, obligated, pledged or reserved for any current or future 

purpose in any fiscal year, the District will, from such available sources, reimburse the 

Developer for all Operating Advances, together with simple interest thereon at a fixed 

rate of 8.5% per annum (cumulatively, the “Operating Reimbursement Amount”) 

commencing as of the date of each Operating Advance. 

(b) Any Board decision to appropriate the Operating Reimbursement 

Amount, however, shall be purely discretionary and non-obligatory. 

3. Integrated Agreement and Amendments.  This Agreement and any special 

terms and conditions described hereunder and appended hereto as contemplated by this 

Agreement constitute the entire, integrated agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement, 

and each and every of its terms and conditions, may be added to or amended only by the 

mutual written agreement of the Parties, which agreement shall be executed with the 

same formalities as this Agreement shall have been executed.  Special terms and 

conditions, if any, which are agreed upon by the Parties at the time this Agreement is 

executed shall be reduced to writing in accordance with this Section and appended to this 

Agreement. 

4. Notice.  Any notices, demands, or other communications required or 

permitted to be given in writing hereunder shall be delivered personally or sent by 

registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the Parties at the 

addresses set forth below, or at such other address as either Party may hereafter or from 

time to time designate by written notice to the other Party given in accordance herewith.  

Notice shall be considered given when personally delivered or mailed and shall be 

considered received by the Party to whom it is addressed on the third day after such 

notice is given. 



{00771724.DOCX / 3 } 

3 

To the District: 

Northridge Estates Metropolitan 

District No, 1 

Attn: Alex Carlson  

Centennial Consulting Group, LLC 

2619 Canton Court, Suite A  

Fort Collins, CO 80525 

 with a copy to: 

Collins Cockrel & Cole, P.C. 

Attention:  David A. Greher, Esq. 

390 Union Boulevard, Suite 400 

Denver, CO 80228 

 

   

To the Developer: 

Northridge Estates Partners, LLC 

Attn: Lee Lowrey  

4040 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 250  

Newport Beach, CA 92660 

  

 

5. Assignment.  This Agreement, and each and every of its rights and 

obligations, may not be assigned by the District except with the prior written consent of 

the Developer, and may not be assigned by the Developer. 

6. Severability.  If any clause(s) or provision(s) of this Agreement shall be 

adjudged to be invalid and unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by 

operation of any law, such clause(s) or provision(s) shall not affect the validity of this 

Agreement as a whole, or of the remaining clauses and provisions. 

7. Enforcement.  This Agreement shall inure to the mutual benefit of the 

Parties, their respective heirs, successors and permitted assigns, subject to Section 5 

hereof, and shall be enforceable according to its terms and conditions under the laws of 

the State of Colorado.  In this regard, the Parties hereto agree that this Agreement may be 

enforced at law or in equity, by decree of specific performance or damages, or pursuant 

to such other legal and/or equitable relief as may be available under the laws of the State 

of Colorado. 

8. Default / Remedies.  In the event of any breach or default of this 

Agreement, each Party shall be entitled to exercise any remedy available in equity or at 

law.  In this regard, this Agreement may be enforced by specific performance or 

injunction, or pursuant to such other legal and/or equitable relief as may be available 

under the laws of the State.  The prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney 

fees and costs.  Absent bad faith or fraud by the District, no penalty shall be imposed 

upon the District because of its inability to pay any portion of the Operating 

Reimbursement Amount to the Developer.  There shall be no acceleration in the 

repayment of outstanding Operating Advances in the event of any default.  Nothing 

contained herein shall allow recovery for consequential or punitive damages.  Venue for 

any judicial action shall be in the State District Court for Weld County. 



{00771724.DOCX / 3 } 

4 

9. Counterpart Execution.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 

and the authorized signatures of any Party affixed to a counterpart signature shall be 

deemed to constitute execution of the original Agreement. 

10. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall end on the date that the Operating 

Reimbursement Amount has been paid in full to the Developer in accordance with the 

terms hereof or 40 years after the date hereof, whichever date occurs first in time.  Any 

portion of the Operating Reimbursement Amount not paid 40 years after the date hereof 

shall be deemed discharged, paid and canceled. 

11. Agreement Not an Indebtedness or Multiple Fiscal Year Financial 

Obligation.  The District’s payment obligations under this Agreement shall be subject to 

annual appropriation by the Board of Directors of the District in its sole discretion.  The 

terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a multiple-fiscal year 

direct or indirect district debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of 

Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution. 

12. Governmental Immunity.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of 

the rights and privileges of the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity 

Act. 

13. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the internal laws of the State of Colorado. 

14. Authority.  By its execution hereof, each party hereto represents and 

warrants that its representative signing hereunder has full power and lawful authority to 

execute this document and bind the respective party to the terms hereof. 

15. Supplemental Public Securities Act.  The District hereby elects to apply all 

of the provisions of the Supplemental Public Securities Act, found at Title 11, Article 57, 

Part 2, C.R.S., to this Agreement other than Section 11-57-211, C.R.S.  This recital shall 

be conclusive evidence of the validity and the regularity of the District’s execution of this 

Agreement after its delivery for value. 

16. Conflicting Provisions.  To the extent that any conflict exists between the 

terms of this Agreement and the terms of the Service Plan, the provisions of the Service 

Plan shall prevail. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

  




